
April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 1 

 
 

STUDY SESSION 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: April 7, 2011 

 Time: 5:30 pm 

 Posted: 4/4/11  
 

1. CALL STUDY SESSION TO ORDER – Mayor 
a. Setting Goals/City Manager Evaluation Process  
b. Wastewater Treatment Plant Update on Change Orders 
 

2. ADJOURN STUDY SESSION 
 

REVISED AGENDA 
CITY OF FERNDALE ς HUMBOLDT COUNTY CALIFORNIA ς U.S.A. 

REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

Location: City Hall 
834 Main Street 
Ferndale CA 95536 

Date: April 7, 2011 

 Time: 7 pm 

 Posted: 4/4/11  
 
We welcome you to the meeting. Members of the Public may be heard on any business item on this Agenda before or 

during the City Council consideration of the item. The public may also directly address the City Council on any item of interest 
to the public that is not on the Agenda during the public comment time; however, the City Council generally cannot take action 
on an item not on the agenda. 

A person addressing the City Council will be limited to five (5) minutes unless the Mayor of the City Council grants a 
longer period of time. While not required, we would appreciate it if you would identify yourself with your name and address 
when addressing the Council. 

This City endeavors to be ADA compliant. Should you require assistance with written information or access to the 
facility, or a hearing amplification, please call 786-4224 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

TO SPEAK ON ANY ISSUE, BE ACKNOWLEDGED BY THE MAYOR BEFORE PROCEEDING TO THE PODIUM, STATE YOUR 
NAME AND ADDRESS FOR THE RECORD (optional), AND DIRECT YOUR COMMENTS ONLY TO THE COUNCIL. 

 
1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER – Mayor 
2. PLEDGE ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 
3. ROLL CALL – City Clerk 
4. CEREMONIAL:  

a. Welcome Home Vietnam Vets – Craig Cowan to accept. 
5. MODIFICATIONS TO THE AGENDA 
6. STUDY SESSIONS  
7. PUBLIC COMMENT. (This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on 

any matter not on this agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of 
the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an 
urgent nature requiring immediate action. This portion of the meeting will be 
approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each speaker given no 
more than five minutes.) ................................................................................................  Page 6 

8. CONSENT CALENDAR. (All matters listed under this category are considered to 
be routine by the City Council and will be enacted by one motion. Unless a 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 2 

 
 

specific request is made by a Councilmember, staff or the public, the Consent 
Calendar will not be read. There will be no separate discussion of these items. 
However, if discussion is required, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Calendar and considered separately under “Call Items.”) 

a. Acceptance of Accounts Payable .......................................................................  Page 7 
b. Approval of previous minutes 

i. March 3, 2011 .......................................................................................  Page 19 
ii. March 14, 2011 .....................................................................................  Page 21 

9. CALL ITEMS  
10. PRESENTATION / Community Forum  

a. Wastewater Treatment Plant Visual Progress Report 
11. BUSINESS 

a. PUBLIC HEARING: Unmet Transit Needs ............................................................  Page 23 
b. Mobile Vendors moratorium  ............................................................................  Page 28 
c. Accept re-submitted Draft Market Study as Final .............................................  Page 29 
d. Resolution 2011-14 for 8th Progress Pay Request for Management and 

Construction Related Costs for the WWTP  .......................................................  Page 30 
e. Resolution 2011-13 Authorizing the City manager to sign a contract with 

Humboldt State University for Sewer GIS Mapping ..........................................   Page 34 
f. Resolution 2011-17 Health Insurance provider change to California State 

Association of Counties (CSAC) ..........................................................................  Page 36 
g. Resolution 2011-15 Authorizing City Manager to sign contract for Police 

Car Rental ...........................................................................................................  Page 38 
h. Resolution 2011-16 Acknowledging and Authorizing the closure of 

Fernbridge on August 7, 2011 for the Centennial Celebration..........................  Page 40 
i. Humboldt County General Plan Update ............................................................  Page 42 

12. CORRESPONDENCE  ........................................................................................................  Page 49 
13. REPORTS 

a. City Manager Staff Report and Community Events ...........................................  Page 53 
b. Commissions / Committees and others 

i. Design Review Committee ....................................................................  Page 63 
ii. Ferndale Health Inspector ....................................................................  Page 62 

iii. Russ Park Committee Minutes..............................................................  Page 66 
c. Council Reports and Comments 

i. HWMA ...................................................................................................  Page 70 
14. --- 
15. --- 
16. ADJOURN ........................................................................................................................  Page 70 

 
This notice is posted in compliance with Government Code §54954.2. 
The next Regular Meeting of the Ferndale City Council will be held on 

THURSDAY, May 5, 2011 in the Auditorium of City Hall at 7:00pm 

 

Section 1 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 3 

 
 

Call Meeting to Order 
 

Section 2 
Pledge Allegiance 

 
Section 3 

Roll Call 
 

Section 4 
Ceremonial 

Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans ς Craig Cowan to Accept 
  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 4 

 
 

A PROCLAMATION OF THE MAYOR  
OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE  

 
Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans Day 

March 30, 2011 
 

 
WHEREAS, the Vietnam War, also known as the Second Indochina War, military struggle was 
fought in Vietnam from 1959 to 1975, involving the North Vietnamese and National Liberation 
Front in conflict with the United States forces and the South Vietnamese army; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 1965, U.S. combat troops composed mainly of volunteers arrived in Vietnam and 
by 1969, a peak of approximately 543,000 troops would be reached; and  
 
WHEREAS, in 1982, the Vietnam Veterans Memorial was dedicated at the Capitol to 
commemorate those 58,000 Americans who lost their lives or were declared missing in action 
and the 300,000 U.S. soldiers who were wounded. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, Mayor Jeffrey Farley, on behalf of the entire City Council, do hereby 
proclaim (in arrears) 
 

March 30, 2011 
Welcome Home Vietnam Veterans Day 

 
In the City of Ferndale and offer our heartfelt appreciation to those Veterans who risked their 
lives in protecting our Country’s freedom. 
 
 
      Proclaimed this 7th Day of April, 2011 
 
 
      __________________________________   
Attest:      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 5 

 
 

 

Section 5 

Modifications to the Agenda 
 

Section 6 
Study Sessions 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 6 

 
 

Section 7 

Public Comment 
 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on this agenda 
and over which the Council has jurisdiction. 
 
Items requiring Council action not listed on this agenda will be placed on the next regular 
agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rd of the Council (three of 
the five members) that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgent 
nature requiring immediate action. 
 
This portion of the meeting will be approximately 30 minutes total for all speakers, with each 
speaker given no more than five minutes. Please state your name and address for the record. 
(This is optional.) 

 

Section 8 

Consent Agenda 
 
All matters listed under this category are considered to be routine by the City Council and will 
be enacted by one motion.  
 
Is there anyone on the Council, Staff or the public that would like to pull an item off the 
Consent Agenda for scrutiny? TƘƻǎŜ ƛǘŜƳǎ ǿƛƭƭ ōŜ ŎƻƴǎƛŘŜǊŜŘ ǎŜǇŀǊŀǘŜƭȅ ǳƴŘŜǊ ά/ŀƭƭ LǘŜƳǎΦέ 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 7 

 
 

        

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 8 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 9 

 
 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 10 

 
 

          

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 11 

 
 

               



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 12 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 13 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 14 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 15 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 16 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 17 

 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 18 

 
 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 19 

 
 

 

   City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for the March 3, 2011 Meeting 5:30 p.m. 

 
Study Session: Present at the study session were City Council members Ken Mierzwa, John Maxwell, 
Niels Lorenzen and Stuart Titus; Staff City Manager Jay Parrish, City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum; 
Consultant Elizabeth Conner and Market Study Author Mary Ellen Shay. The study session proceeded 
with a report from City Manager Parrish regarding the conveyance of the property from the Navy to the 
City including the plan for remediation of the mold in the house #101 and the Navy’s need for a Lead & 
Asbestos addendum to the Environmental Report prior to conveyance. Consultant Conner gave an 
update on housing rehabilitation and the plans for the rehabilitation RFP for an estimated $750,000.   
Timeline: We are about two months behind with the delays in conveyance and financing. We are 
working on four different things to minimize risk and cost: 1) conveyance; 2) RFP for rehabilitation; 3) 
ownership structure and 4) the market study.  Mary Ellen Shay presented the Market Study.  Can the 
units be rented and are rents reasonable? Her study shows that they are. Is the property competitive 
with amenities? Yes. She discussed other parts of the study and gave the conclusion that the rental of 
the units is feasible, and that we should proceed as quickly as possible. Non-Profit setup: Phil Aycock has 
filed and received the signed Articles of Incorporation for Ferndale Housing. Aycock recommends that 
we hold on this until the ownership structure has been decided. The study session concluded at 7 pm. 

Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the regular City Council meeting to order at 7 p.m. Also present were 
Councilmen Mierzwa, Maxwell, Lorenzen and Titus as well as City Manager Parrish, City Clerk Kaytis-
Slocum, as well as Consultant Elizabeth Conner and Mary Ellen Shay. Those present pledged allegiance 
to the flag.  

Modifications to the Agenda: City Manager Parrish asked that 11i be moved to the front of the Business 
section. 

Consent Calendar: MOTION: (Mierzwa/Titus) Accept Accounts Payable, Approve the minutes for 
February 3, 2011 and Approve the wording of Resolution 2011-05; Appoint Council as the Board of 
Directors for the Non-Profit Organization Called Ferndale Housing. Unanimous vote 4-0 (Councilman 
Lorenzen abstained which is not counted as a vote, according to the Rosenberg’s Rules of Order). 

Ferndale Housing Equity Use: Duane Martin spoke of his concerns that when the Navy Housing property 
is conveyed and appraised that the city would use it as equity on other projects. Staff explained that we 
would be legally constrained against using the equity. 

Draft Market Study: Some changes in the text were suggested by the audience and council members. 
The author agreed to make changes and resubmit. MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Move to postpone action 
until the next meeting. All in favor. 

Request for Proposal For Lead and Asbestos Study: City Manager Parrish explained that if the Navy does 
the study, it will take about 6 months. If we do the study, it will be done in four to five weeks; however, 
we would have to pay for it. Comments from the audience included negotiating with the Navy to pay for 
half the study; waiting for the Navy to do the study, frustration over the length of time and money it is 
taking for the conveyance and the problems encountered. MOTION: (Titus/Mierzwa) Approve issuance 
of Request for Proposal not to exceed $21,000. Motion carried with a Nay from Lorenzen.  It is hoped 
that the RFP contract be awarded by the March 17th. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 20 

 
 
Financing for the Ferndale/Navy Housing Facility: Elizabeth Conner reported that we have been trying to 
obtain financing for the rehabilitation and pre-acquisition costs of approximately $750,000. Traditionally 
this would be covered by public financing, but we aren’t doing that. We have been talking with North 
Valley Ban (NVB), where we already have a loan; they are in first lien position. Cities can’t use deeds of 
trust to secure loans, cities can’t enter into loan obligation that takes more than one year to repay or for 
more than is in the unrestricted general fund. If we established a Public Housing Authority, they only 
serve 80% of less than area median income. This would be time consuming and onerous, with more 
restrictions. It is unlikely that the City of Ferndale would qualify. We could form a redevelopment 
agency, but that takes four to five years to set up. What we have left for options are: 1) We could work 
with NVB to use a different funding mechanism called a lease-lease back financing. We would sell the 
property to the bank for $1 for a 25 year loan with the agreement that in 15 years we buy back the 
property from them for the balance of the loan. 2) Work with a non-profit – deed to the non-profit with 
CCRs that the city writes. There are a fair amount of legal documents involved. There are two attorneys 
who can review our documents. Arcata will share their legal documents with us, which will save us 
money.  

Pay Request for Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP. Kent Hanford spoke about 
the progress of the Wastewater Treatment Plant, which is about 43% complete. MOTION: 
(Maxwell/Titus) Approve Resolution 2011-11 for 7th Progress Pay Request for Management and 
Construction Related Costs for the WWTP.  Motion passed unanimously 5-0.  Mr. Hanford asked that the 
council allow a study session before the April meeting to discuss the Wastewater Treatment Plant. 

Annual Financial Report for 2009/2010: Phil Aycock discussed the Draft Report concluded by saying that 
the city is in a healthy position. Duane Martin remarked that the roads in Ferndale need some work. City 
Manager Parrish said that although he would agree, reminded the council that we have paved more 
roads in the last four years than have been paved in the last 30 years, and since we have completed the 
priority list, we will be setting a new priority list. MOTION: (Maxwell/Mierzwa) Approve the City of 
Ferndale Annual Budget Audit for 2009-2010. Motion was unanimously approved. 

Ordinance 2011-03: Medical Marijuana Dispensary Moratorium: MOTION: (Maxwell/Titus) Move to 
adopt Ordinance 2011-03 “An Ordinance of the City of Ferndale, California, Authorizing the Extension of 
Interim Urgency Ordinance No. 2010-03 Which imposes a Moratorium on the Legal Establishment and 
Operation of Medical Marijuana Dispensaries within the City of Ferndale pursuant to Government Code 
Section 65858,” by title only and direct staff to post and notice it appropriately. Motion carried 
unanimously. 

State Video Service Franchises Ordinance: MOTION: (Farley/Maxwell) Approve the second reading of 
Ordinance 2011-02, “State Video Service Franchises Ordinance” by title only and direct staff to post and 
notice it appropriately. Motion passed unanimously. 

Disposal of Obsolete and Redundant Records: MOTION: (Maxwell/Titus) Approve Resolution 2011-12 
Authorizing Disposal of Obsolete and Redundant Records. Motion passed unanimously. 

Appoint Committee/Commission members: Mayor Farley reappointed Jorgen von Frausing Borch and 
Lino Mogni to the Planning Commission, and Robert Burroughs to the Library Board, all for four year 
terms. MOTION: (Titus/Maxwell) Approve Mayor Farley’s appointments. Motion passed unanimously. 

Correspondence: City Manager Parrish spoke about the letter we had received from Housing and 
Community Development regarding our Housing Element and compliance with the Regional Housing 
Needs Assessment (RHNA) allocation. We may only get credit for 25% of the Navy Housing for the RHNA 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 21 

 
 
numbers we are required to provide, and the Housing Element will have to be adjusted to account for 
that. 

Staff Report and Community Announcements: City Manager Parrish talked about the Power Point setup 
purchased by Police Chief Bret Smith and installed in the auditorium at City Hall. He also spoke of the 
changes on the city hall green thanks to an anonymous benefactor who paid for the new trees. 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:20 pm. The next regular council meeting will be April 7, 2011. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 

City Clerk 

 

   City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
City Council Minutes for the March 14, 2011 Meeting 6:00 p.m.  Page 21 

 
Mayor Jeffrey Farley called the special City Council meeting to order at 6 p.m. Also present were 
Councilmen Mierzwa and Maxwell as well as City Manager Parrish. Those present pledged allegiance to 
the flag.  

Coastal Commission: MOTION: (Maxwell/Mierzwa) Submit Mayor Farley as candidate for Coastal 
Commission to Mayor Selection Committee. All in favor. 

The meeting was adjourned at 6:16 pm. The next regular council meeting will be April 7, 2011. 

Respectfully Submitted: 

 

 

Jay Parrish 

City Manager 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 22 

 
 
 

 

Section 9 
 

CALL ITEMS 
 

These are items pulled from the consent agenda  
for discussion and a separate motion. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Section 10 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 

 
 

Section 11 
 

BUSINESS 
  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 23 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11a 

Agenda Item Title: Public Hearing: Unmet Transit Needs 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
Mayor Farley  

 open public hearing;  

 remind people that they have 3 minutes for comments;  

 Council listens to all public comments;  

 Mayor Farley closes public hearing.  

 City Council comments 

 City Council makes a decision. 
 

RECOMMENDATION:  Provide the public with the opportunity to give input on unmet needs.  

Consider unmet needs and direct staff to forward the unmet needs to the RTA worded as one of the 

three choices: (1) There are no unmet transit needs. (2) There are no unmet transit needs, which are 

reasonable to meet. (3) There are unmet transit needs, including those that are reasonable to meet. 

BACKGROUND:  Please see the new definitions of “Unmet Transit Needs” and “Reasonable to Meet” 

provided on the following pages from HCAOG.  

State law requires the Regional Transportation Agencies and their composite communities address 

unmet transit needs on a yearly basis.  This item provides the opportunity for the public to identify 

unmet needs and the Council to forward such needs to the RTA for consideration. 

During the spring of each year the Humboldt County Association of Governments (HCAOG) conducts an 

unmet transit needs public hearing process within the jurisdictional area of Humboldt County.  As part of 

the annual process each jurisdictional area within the county must conduct its own public hearing. 

The decision of the public hearing must use specific terms during the decision to be able to receive the 

money from HCAOG.  The three choices are:  

       (1) There are no unmet transit needs. 

       (2) There are no unmet transit needs, which are reasonable to meet. 

       (3) There are unmet transit needs, including those that are reasonable to meet. 

In the event of finding that there are no unmet transit needs or that there are no unmet transit needs 

which are reasonable to meet, entities may expend TDA resources for non-transit purposes if excess 

funds remain.  Finding that there are unmet transit needs, including those that are reasonable to meet, 

delivers a mandate to the respective entity to set aside funds, given that they are available, to 

implement a program to meet those needs deemed “reasonable to meet.” 

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Unknown. 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 24 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 25 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 26 

 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 27 

 
 

 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 28 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11b 

Agenda Item Title: Mobile Vendor’s Moratorium 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve a moratorium on mobile vendors in Ferndale. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Our present ordinance addressing mobile vendors does not require necessary information regarding 
health inspections, location of the mobile business, proof of insurance, etc.  
 
We have acquired information from other cities that will enable us to change our ordinance. In the 
meantime, it seems prudent for the City to place a moratorium on mobile vendors until we can update 
our ordinance to comply with Federal, State, and local requirements. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 

Return of one vendor’s fee. 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 29 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11C 

Agenda Item Title: Accept Revised Draft Market Study as Final 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Accept Revised Draft Market Study as Final. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City Council approved having a market study done on the Ferndale / Navy Housing 
Complex. The Draft was presented at the March meeting by the consultant during the study 
session. Revisions were requested during that meeting. If the council approves the revised 
Market Study, it would be appropriate to make a motion to accept the Market Study as Final. 
Because of its size is being made available to the public and the council at the City Hall Counter 
during regular business hours. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 30 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11d 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2011-14 8th Progress Pay Request for Management and 
Construction Related Costs for the WWTP. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-14 8th Progress Pay Request for Management and Construction 
Related Costs for the WWTP. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Work on our WWTP began on August 2, 2010 and this is the 8th draw down from the USDA loan. 
The costs associated with this draw down include costs from Wahlund Construction for 
$1,128,244.87 as well as Construction Management costs from Manhard Consulting for 
$49,331.89 and soft cost of $100 for Kemp Inspection Services. This all falls within the 
parameters of our WWTP budget 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$1,177,676.76 from the USDA loan account. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 31 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 32 

 
 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 33 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2011-14 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE  

APPROVES THE EIGHTH PARTIAL PAYMENT REQUEST TO WAHLUND CONSTRUCTION, MANHARD 

CONSULTING FOR THE WASTEWATER TREATMENT FACILITY PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, Wahlund Construction began Work on our Wastewater Treatment Plant on August 2, 2010; 

and  

WHEREAS, Manhard Consulting is supplying Construction Administration for this project; and  

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale will be processing partial pay requests on a monthly basis, as well as 

periodic individual bills; and  

WHEREAS, The City Council has received the eighth partial payment request of $1,128,244.87 for 

Wahlund, $49,331.89  for Manhard Consulting and soft costs of $100 for Kemp Inspection Services. This 

all falls within the parameters of our WWTP budget  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale hereby approves 

payment of the Eighth partial payment request in the amount of $1,128,244.87 for Wahlund, 

$49,331.89 for Manhard Consulting for a total of $1,177,676.76. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED on this 7th day of April, 2011 by the following vote:  

AYES:       

NOES:      

ABSENT:    

ABSTAIN:    

                    ____________________ 

                Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 34 

 
 

 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11e 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2011-13 Authorize Contract with Humboldt State 
University for Sewer GIS Mapping. 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-13 Authorize Contract with Humboldt State University for Sewer GIS 
Mapping. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The City’s mapping system is outdated and hard to follow. Staff has been working on bringing 
our collection system maps up to date and accurate. This GIS mapping will allow staff to share 
infrastructure information through the web with contractors and consultants as well as keep a 
data base for all the applicable infrastructure such as manholes and cleanouts. This data can be 
added to in the future. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
$6500 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 35 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2011-13 

AUTHORIZE CONTRACT WITH HUMBOLDT STATE UNIVERSITY FOR SEWER GIS MAPPING 

WHEREAS, the City of Ferndale desires to contract for the performance of services for the purpose of a 

GIS map of the CITY sewer manhole and cleanout locations; and 

WHEREAS, Humboldt State University is duly qualified and experienced to provide such services; and 

WHEREAS, the Scope of Work is: HSU will provide precise GPS based coordinates for all of the CITY 

manholes and cleanouts in their collection system.  HSU will provide a small database of the physical 

characteristics of each item based on data provided by the City (e.g., date of installation, diameter, field 

notes, a picture, video if applicable, nearest street intersection, etc).  Once all the data is found and 

provided, HSU will design a base map of the city, with labeled streets overlaid on aerial image.  The map 

should be suitable for web viewing or printing on a large format printer/plotter.  The manholes and 

cleanouts should be plotted on the map.  The entire data set should be available for inclusion in a GIS 

package or viewer and be viewable immediately upon completion of the project. The final product 

should be able to edit if the City wishes to add more data at a later time. CITY will provide HSU with up 

to date maps showing approximate locations of manholes and cleanouts and will assist in the field when 

necessary; and 

WHEREAS, The City agrees to pay HSU $6,500 for the services listed in the Scope of Work, above; and 

WHEREAS, The City and HSU require an Agreement for Professional Services for the work to be done. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the City Council of the City of Ferndale directs the City 

Manager to sign the attached agreement. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on April 7, 2011, by the 

following vote: 

Ayes:   
Noes: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  
 
 
 
      _________________________________  
      Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
_______________________  
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 36 

 
 

 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11f 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2011-17 Health Insurance provider change to California 
State Association of Counties (CSAC). 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2011-17 Health Insurance provider change to California State Association of 
Counties (CSAC). 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Our current medical and dental program has increased by 9%. City Staff has been researching 
different Health Care providers and has concluded that by changing our medical and dental 
insurance provider to CSAC, our medical and dental costs would be reduced by over $4,200 
from last year’s amount. The policy that we currently carry is based on age; CSAC’s program is 
not based on age and has better coverage.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
Reduction of over $4,200 from last year’s cost. 
 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 37 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2010-17 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE APPROVING A CHANGE IN THE 

HEALTH IINSURANCE PROVIDER TO THE CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES (CSAC) 

 

WHEREAS, The City of Ferndale has experienced increasing costs in Health Insurance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our current policy increases substantially as our employees reach certain ages; and 
 
WHEREAS, By joining a larger group of insured members, the City can save on health insurance; and  
 
WHEREAS, Staff research of various Health Care Providers has concluded that changing our Health 
Insurance Provider to the California State Association of Counties (CSAC) will substantially reduce costs. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes the City 
Manager to change Health Insurance Provider to the California State Association of Counties (CSAC) 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on April 7, 2011, by the 
following vote: 
 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

   
Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 
 
 
__________________________________ 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 38 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11g 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2010-15 Authorizing the City Manager to sign a Vehicle 
Lease Agreement 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
Recommendation: 

Direct City Manager to sign a Vehicle Lease Agreement for the lease of one 2010 Dodge Charger for one 

dollar ($1.00).  The vehicle will be placed into patrol service for the police department. 

Discussion: 

The police department has a fleet of three Ford Crown Victoria patrol cars (1 – 1998, 1 – 2007 and 1 – 

2010).  The 1998 model is due to be taken out of service. 

Chief Smith proposes entering into an agreement to lease one new 2010 Dodge Charger. The terms of 

the agreement include leasing the vehicle for one dollar ($1.00) from date of delivery until December 1, 

2014 or until the vehicle has 25,000 miles, whichever comes first.  It is Leasor’s desire to accept back the 

vehicle for their business use and provide the police department with a new Dodge Charger at the time 

of return.  

The agreement would allow the police department to acquire a new police car without a large cash 

outlay. Our initial set-up cost to equip the vehicle would be approximately $3,245.00.  This would be a 

one-time expenditure since the equipment can be transferred to the new vehicle.  The police 

department can absorb this expenditure in its current budget. 

Chief Smith anticipates the following benefits from the agreement: 

 The vehicle comes with a 3 year / 36,000 mile bumper-to-bumper warranty and 60 month 

warranty on the power train, thus reducing vehicle repair costs. 

 The City of Ferndale will receive a new patrol vehicle approximately every two years thus 

minimizing upkeep and repair costs. 

 Ford Motor Company is no longer producing the Crown Victoria model.  The Dodge Charger 

appears to be the standard of the industry. 

 The Dodge Charger is more economical and fuel efficient.  This is a very important variable 

considering the rising costs of gasoline.  

Fiscal Impact:   

For fiscal year 2010-2011 – One dollar ($1.00) for the agreement and a one-time expenditure of 

$3,245.00 to equip the vehicle.  These expenditures can be absorbed in the police department’s 

current budget. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 39 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2010-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO SIGN A VEHICLE LEASE AGREEMENT REGARDING POLICE CAR LEASE 

 

WHEREAS, The Ferndale Police Department wishes to have serviceable vehicles for its use in the 

protection of the citizens of Ferndale and the surrounding area; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Lessor wishes to provide a new 2010 Dodge Charger suitable for use and service by 

Lessee as a police department patrol vehicle; and 

 

WHEREAS, The Vehicle Lease Agreement is for an amount of $1.00 for a term from the date of delivery 

to December 1, 2014, or twenty five thousand (25,000) miles, whichever first occurs. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale authorizes the City 

Manager to sign the Vehicle Lease Agreement. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on April 7, 2011, by the 
following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

   

Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 40 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11h 

Agenda Item Title: Resolution 2010-16 Acknowledging and authorizing the closure of 
Fernbridge on August 7, 2011 for the Centennial Celebration 

Presented  By: Jay Parrish, City Manager 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 2010-16 Acknowledging and authorizing the closure of Fernbridge on 
August 7, 2011 for the Centennial Celebration    
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The Fernbridge Celebration Committee is planning the Centennial Celebration of Fernbridge for 
Sunday, August 7, 2011. The dedication ceremony will begin at 11 am and will conclude with a 
Run/Walk across Fernbridge, which requires the closure of the bridge for a fifteen minute time 
period that will occur somewhere between 12:30 and 1:00 pm. The California Department of 
Transportation (CalTrans) requires a formal resolution from the communities affected by the 
closure. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
 
None 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 41 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2010-16 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF FERNDALE ACKNOWLEDGING AND 

AUTHORIZING THE TEMPORARY CLOSURE OF VEHICLE TRAFFIC ACROSS THE BRIDGE IN FERNBRIDGE, 

CALIFORNIA ON AUGUST 7TH, 2011 FOR THE 100TH ANNIVERSARY CELEBRATION OF THE BRIDGE 

 

WHEREAS, The Fernbridge Celebration Committee has requested a formal resolution from the City of 

Ferndale acknowledging and authorizing a fifteen minute closure of the Fernbridge, California bridge to 

vehicle traffic on August 7th, 2011 to submit to the California Department of Transportation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Fernbridge Celebration Committee is planning the Centennial Celebration of the Bridge 

for Sunday, August 7th, 2011 and will hold a foot race / walk across the bridge, reproducing a race that 

occurred when the bridge was built and opened 100 years ago; and 

 

WHEREAS, the foot race / walk will take place for 15 minutes sometime between 12:30 and 1:00 pm on 

the day of Sunday, August 7th, 2011. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of Ferndale acknowledges and 

authorizes a fifteen minute closure of the bridge in Fernbridge, California on August 7th, 2011 to allow 

the Fernbridge 100th Anniversary Celebration Committee to conduct a foot race across the bridge during 

the celebration event. 

 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Ferndale on April 7, 2011, by the 
following vote: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSENT: 

ABSTAIN: 

   

Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Nancy Kaytis-Slocum, City Clerk 

 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 42 

 
 

Meeting Date: April 7, 2011 Agenda Item Number 11i 

Agenda Item Title: Humboldt County General Plan Update 

Presented  By: Jeffrey Farley, Mayor 

Type of Item: x Action  Discussion  Information 

Action Required:  No Action x Voice Vote  Roll Call Vote 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 
Mayor Farley has asked that this be put on the agenda. The following pages 43 and 44 have 
been prepared by Tina Christensen, Coldwell Banker, Cutten Realty. 
 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 43 

 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 44 

 
 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 45 

 
 

 
  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 46 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 47 

 
 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 48 

 
 

 
  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 49 

 
 

Section 12 
 

CORRESPONDENCE 
 

Correspondence Files are available for review at City Hall during 
regular business hours, Monday through Thursday, 9am to 4pm. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 50 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 51 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 52 

 
 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 53 

 
 

 

Section 13 

 
REPORTS 

 
Section 13a:  City Manager Staff Report 

 
CITY MANAGER: 
 
Meetings:  
 

 Kiwanis meeting 1st and 3rd Tuesday of the month at 4:30 pm 

 City Council Meeting – March 3rd, closed session, Council conducted a CM evaluation. 

 In last month’s report I wrote that there was a “citizen interested in donating trees to replace 
trees around city hall. Numerous discussions with him and committee, and have met with Mary 
Gearheart a landscape architect and she has submitted final plans to replace trees. We reached 
agreement with committee and Public Works will remove trees and stumps and dig holes and 
we will have the trees planted by a professional. We will also have new benches placed in the 
City Green soon after the trees are planted. We may need to augment the sidewalk areas for the 
benches and will contact local contractor for opinion.” We have planted the trees and received 
the benches and placed two of them on Main St. so that we can better determine what kind of 
changes or design we need for the landing pads.  

 Met with construction manager, Wahlund construction representative and USDA 
representative, to go over monthly pay request. Also went over construction progress, and 
change orders. We continue to look for ways to reduce costs and save time. We are close to 
halfway and still within budget parameters. 

 Continuing discussions with Fresnel lens committee members to go over cost estimates and 
possible housing alternatives being developed by local contractor, engineer and draftsman. We 
are waiting for final cost estimates from contractor before it is brought before the Museum 
Board for consideration. If that is successful we plan to bring project proposal to Lytel 
Foundation for grant to accomplish construction portion of proposal. As soon as we are 
informed that the Museum Board and Lytel Foundation are supportive of the proposal we will 
send the Coast Guard our proposal. Meanwhile we continue to wait on assistant attorney 
general to respond to our request for their position on whether the City’s loan with Coast Guard 
is valid.  

 Numerous conversations regarding Salt River Project with Watershed Council members, NRC 
representatives, council members and citizens. The question is how the Farm Bureau’s position 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 54 

 
 

will affect the project. We are not sure at this point but are very concerned that delays may 
jeopardize our timeline and therefore our funding. 

  Numerous meetings with individual councilmen and the mayor regarding City issues. 
Councilmen Maxwell and I have interacted to develop evaluation process and will have short 
study session before April meeting to go over and build on this process with the rest of council. 

 Daily interaction with Police Chief regarding City and citizen issues. Continuing discussions on 
OES situations and scenarios to better help City respond to possible events. Numerous 
conversations regarding fiscal budget and ways to reduce costs. Taking advantage of the cab 
company offer and fuel saving ideas should result in significant cost savings.  

 City Managers Meeting- March 17th 3-6 pm. 

 Attended a kick off meeting for the EECBG grant. The City is sponsoring for the school. 

 Daily meetings with Public Works in morning to go over daily activities. Capital improvements, 
WWTF progress, I&I reduction, training and mapping improvements dominating conversations. 

 Daily discussions and updates on City Council agenda items and city issues with     City Clerk and 
Treasurer. Considerable time in developing procedures and documentation relating to building 
and planning issues, and design review situations and interaction with PC and DR committee. 
We are still grappling with a process that allows all parties to stay informed on projects and 
issues. I have suggested that a combined meeting of PC and DRC to establish goals and 
consensus might be a way to make sure we are all on the same page. 

 Discussions with City Planner regarding design review and planning issues. Working on a 
meeting to go over goals with PC and DRC. 

 Conversations with Nancy T. and Lino about a questionair for downtown businesses regarding 
Planning Commission issues and Design Review issues. I believe this would be a good way to get 
more input from the business district. 

 Daily interaction with City Finance Supervisor on budget and department interaction to explain 
use of funds. Considerable time expended in the effort to find a more cost effective medical 
insurance provider. Over the course of several years staff has been trying to seek a more 
economical coverage that does not  

 Numerous discussions with Curtis Ihle from RCD regarding the Salt River Project and the 
Watershed Council and working with property owners. Several visits to Rick Sousa regarding 
SRRP agreement. Several conversations with Gerald Silva regarding slide on Francis Creek above 
his property. 

 Met with CPO regarding the annual inspection of collection system to reduce I&I. We annually 
do a flow test and we are waiting for a little dryer weather to match what we usually do. 

 Reviewing of the last four years in preparation for a study session with council to develop goals 
and priorities for evaluation purposes.  

 Navy Housing: Last month the Council approved a Ld and Asbestos study. IN the process of 
sending out the RFP it became clear that because of the requirements that the Navy was putting 
on the study we would not be able to come in under the Council approved budget. I conveyed 
this to the Navy and the Navy has agreed to take over the study. They are estimating around six 
months. They have hired someone to remediate the mold in house 101 also, and that should be 
happening soon. They have also extended the property management for 6 months. The City has 
also secured a contract to do security. 

 We have ordered the new police car and have put together an agreement that will allow the City 
to get a new car that we will use until we get close to 25,000 miles and then return to cab 
company. At that point we will be given a new car as a replacement. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 55 

 
 

 Discussions with BlueStar gas for proposal on housing complex.  They are almost done with a 
proposal. 

 
 

CITY CLERK: 
 
Meetings  

 City Council Meeting – 3/3/11 

 Design Review Special Meeting – 3/10/11 

 Drainage Committee Meeting – 3/10/11 

 Design Review Committee Meeting – Brianna took Minutes for this 3/24/11 

 Planning Commission Meeting – None in March 

 Meetings with City Manager regarding daily work schedule. 
 

Council Meeting Follow Up 

 Filed Council minutes for February 3, 2011 

 Transcribed Council minutes for the March 3, 2011 meeting. 

 Posted Market Study for Ferndale / Navy Housing item to April agenda. 

 Posted Study Session item for the WWTP to the April Agenda 

 Filed  Resolution 2011-05; Appoint Council as the Board of Directors for the Non-Profit Organization 
Called Ferndale Housing. Filed copy with “Ferndale Housing” 

 Scanned and sent copy to Kent Hanford, then filed Resolution 2011-11 for 7th Progress Pay Request 
for Management and Construction Related Costs for the WWTP. 

 Prepared Minute Order 2011-02 on Approval of Annual Financial Report for 2009/2010. 

 Ordinance 2011-03: Made copy for “working” ordinance book, filed the original Ordinance 2011-03 
“Medical Marijuana Dispensary Moratorium” in the Ordinance Book; recorded the ordinance on the 
Ordinance List; emailed Ordinance to Webmaster for posting Online; placed public notice in the 
newspaper and on bulletin boards. 

 Filed Ordinance 2011-02: Made copy for “working” ordinance book, filed the original Ordinance 
2011-02 “State Video Service Franchises Ordinance.” Scanned and emailed to Sean McLaughlin; 
emailed Ordinance to Webmaster for posting Online; placed public notice in the newspaper and on 
bulletin boards. 

 Sent letter to HCAOG regarding the Council’s request to have Jeffrey Farley appointed to the Coastal 
Commission. 
 

Design Review Committee Follow Up 

 Assembled and disbursed design review committee meeting packets for special design review 
meetings. 

 Instructed Administrative Assistant to write letters or cal those applicants with Design Review 
approval 

 Emailed to the Design Review Committee copies of other city’s definitions of signs. 

 Researched and assembled regular meeting packet for March 24, 2011 meeting. 
 

Projects 

 Follow up on those members of the council and planning commission who have not yet turned in 
their FPPC Statements of Economic Interest (Form 700).  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 56 

 
 

 Training Assistant 
o Building Permits  
o Daily and weekly duties  
o City Clerk duties 
o Design Review Committee: follow-up to minutes for Design Review, including adding new 

items to the Planning Commission agenda, as well as the next Design Review agenda; 
writing letters to applicants whose projects were before the Committee 

 Worked with City Manager and Finance Director on a procedure for Non-profit agency use of the 
Community Center and City Hall. 

 Researched vendor business license applications 

 Researched formation of the Drainage Committee and duties assigned. 

 Spoke to Planner and Inspector regarding attached vs. detached accessory buildings. 
 
Building and Encroachment Permits Issued 
 

424 Main Water damage repair 

553 Main Install commercial range & grill to existing kitchen 

 
 

FINANCIAL MANAGER/DEPUTY CITY CLERK: 
 
Meetings 

 City Council Meeting 

 Anthem Blue Cross (Heidi Olsen) and City Manager 

 Various Meetings with City Manager on Health Insurance 

 Phone conversation with City Manager and CSAC 

 Phone conversation with Tri-County Schools Insurance Group 

 City Manager and Chief of Police on Personnel Policy 
 

Projects 

 Payroll 

 Accounts Payable 

 Accounts Receivable 

 Answer Phones/Greet Visitors 

 Purchase Various Supplies 

 Receive and File February Financial Reports 

 Fill out OSHA forms and Post 

 Prepare Single Audit Letter 

 Research Retirement for Edward Jones 

 Prepare various Health/Dental Insurance Forms 

 Research Suddenlink Phone Service 

 Receive and File Audited Budget 2009-2010 

 Update 2010-2011 Budget 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 57 

 
 
 

CITY PLANNER: 
 
Meetings & Planning Materials  

 Coordinated with City Manager and City Clerk on planning and development projects.  

 Prepared a memo summarizing Mills Act historic property tax incentive program potential 
development and implementation, per City staff request. 

 Responded to inquiry about constructing an accessory structure within 4 ft. of main building.  If 
roofs are connected over a covered walkway between the buildings they could be considered 
attached.       

Projects  

 550 Eugene Street - Exception to Development Standards Permit for a six to nine foot tall fence. 
Prepared Planning Commission action letter and sent to applicant.  

 General Plan Update - Historic & Cultural Resources Element - Continued preparation of new 
element including historic & cultural setting and historical resources and design review chapters.  

 General Plan Update - Housing Element Update - Received and reviewed HCD March 1, 2011 
letter to the City and discussed with City staff.  Revised and updated vacant land inventory GIS 
mapping.  

 

CITY ENGINEER: 
 
Sewer Projects: New Sewer Manholes Main Street, Cleanouts other locations  – 

o Working with Caltrans for Encroachment Permit  
Pedestrian Improvement Project –  

o Focus project on Herbert Street 
o Prepare Construction Documentation for mid April bid 

Applications –  

o Finalize Keyes LLA, revisions to Notice of LLA per Assessor’s Office 
o Review Letter to Matt Pidgeon 

General Engineering –  

o ARRA reporting for Pedestrian Improvement Project 
o HCAOG  - Update projects and cost estimates for Regional Bicycle Plan 

Meetings and Committees –  
o No meetings during March 

Reporting and Correspondence –  
o Prepared monthly staff report 
o General correspondence and meetings with City Staff 

 
 
PUBLIC WORKS: 
 
City Property 

 Firemen’s Park 
o Routine Maintenance, i.e. Mowing Park and Baseball Field. 
o Routine daily walk through to pick-up garbage.  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 58 

 
 

o Mowed the Bocce area. 
o Prepping the ball field for the upcoming season. 
o Fixed a water leak at the drinking fountain. 
o Fixed broken picnic tables 

 Park Restrooms 
o Routinely cleaned every day of the week including weekends. 

 Russ Park 
o Routine maintenance: Pulling out trash from trash & recycle bins daily. 
o Picked-up loose garbage from Russ Park. 

 Town Hall 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Pull out trash daily 
o Received new benches for city hall. They are in the PW building waiting to be installed.  
o Removed the rest of the trees and stumps. 
o Planted all the trees. 
o Met with Keith Hamm to finish up putting mulch around the trees 
o Reset the timers for the greens and outside lights. 
o Adding top soil and reseeding the grass around the trees. 
o Watered the new trees for 10 minutes each. 
o Worked on the lights. Put back plug ins. 

 Library 
o Routine mowing and weedeating 
o Looked at the heating system. 
o Called Sequoia Gas regarding the heating system. The heater needed a fan motor. Sequoia 

diagnosed it and fixed it. 

 City Parking Lot 
o Picked up garbage – Routinely as least once a week unless otherwise warranted. 

 Navy Housing 
o Walked through after the snow/freeze to make sure there were no broken pipes in any of the 

buildings. 

 Main Street Restrooms 
o Routine maintenance: Daily cleaning and stocking of Main Street Restrooms – 7 days a week. 

 Community Center 
o Routine checking of CC when the facility is rented before and after. 
o Repaired the metal hand rail at the porch. 
o Wired in a 12 hour timer. 
o Showed the CC to Ferndale Rep to rent. 

 Police Department 
o Routine mowing and weed eating 
o Installed a motion light 
o Plummed in a new water gun for the sink 

 Scout Hall - Routine mowing and weedeating  

 Roadsides - Routine mowing and weed eating 
o Cleaned the ditch on Shaw Ave across from the grammar school 

 Public Works –  
o Cleaned the shop 
o Put in two new locks. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 59 

 
 
 
Streets, Sidewalks and Stormdrains 

o As rain continues, removed debris from all the drains around town, several times this month. 
o Routine maintenance: Regular maintenance of roadside mowing. 
o Routine picking up trash at the edge of town. 
o Routine maintenance: Continuing to pick-up piles around town as resident call and request 

removal. 
o Routine maintenance: Sweep Main St., Monday, Wednesday and Friday mornings. 
o Marked out USA locates throughout town. – When needed. 
o Picked up lights for Main St. Lights plus one photo cell. One case of each. 
o Patched Berding St. 
o Filled holes on Eugene, filled with ¾ base rocks. 
o Opened the plugged ditches on the Wildcat. 
o Cut back large bush on Fern and removed the debris. 
o Cleaned out ditch on Van Ness. 
o Cleaned out ditch on Shaw. 

 
Vehicle / Equipment Maintenance 

 Routine monthly maintenance and weekly maintenance on frequently used equipment. 

 Put new belts on the JD mower. 
 

Miscellaneous 

 Routine paperwork. 

 Dealing with daily work orders as residents call. 

 Viewed Safety videos. 

 Went to Bay West to pickup supplies. 

 City has one community service worker. 
 

WASTEWATER OPERATIONS: 

 Prepared monthly sample containers 

 Operator Coppini attended Grade 3 certification exam review in Vacaville. 

 Worked on math prep for operator Coppini 

 Specialized Pipeline Services were in during the month to do dye testing and video inspections. See 
attached report. 

 Went over inspection video from 2010 to set up scope of work for Miksis. 

 CPO received call from Tom Hubner regarding a manhole on California that sits in drainage ditch 
taking in water. Further inspection revealed that the top of the manhole had been eroded away. 
Installed a temporary fix until staff could do a permanent one. Later caulked the top of the manhole 
with grout which seemed to fix the problem. 

 CPO performed a system-wide manhole check 

 CPO assisted City Staff with computer tech issues. 

 Ordered chemicals for the WWTP. 

 As per SPS inspection which showed constant flow from lateral, installed clean out at 1093 
California. Assisted owner’s contractor in locating the source of considerable flow using our camera 
and locating equipment. Found that it is coming from under the house. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 60 

 
 

 CPO had meeting with HSU reps to discuss partnership with their GIS department. Put together plan 
for students to provide aerial map overlay with accurate manhole and clean out locations. Will be 
able to provide a database with important information on each location.  

 Filled out POs for monthly invoices 

 CPO call with Orrin Plocher to discuss source control plan. 

 CPO attended all-day workshop in Fortuna regarding Activated Sludge 

 Report of grease discharge in drainage by the VI restaurant. Performed inspection with Public Works 
staff. Evidence was inconclusive. Spoke with owner. 

 Correspondence with reps from Humboldt State and Rural Community Assistance Corporation 
(RCAC) regarding partnering with the engineering program at HSU to provide the city with GIS maps 
of the collection system. By partnering with HSU we can get the product for less cost than 
contracting with an engineering firm. 

 Updated power point slide show showing on-going progress of WWTP construction.   

 Ongoing inspection and site visits to WWTP construction site. 
o Completed filter building slab 
o Fourth and fifth pour of aeration basin were completed 
o Master lift station install began 
o Disc Filters in place but not hooked up 

 Chemical delivered to WWTP. Wrong type of chemical but they had two cylinders of what we 
needed from another order and gave us that order. Will complete the rest of the order in a week. 

 CPO attended CWEA monthly board meeting in Eureka; viewed locations at Redwood Acres for our 
annual fall mini-conference. 

 CPO assisted in office answering phones and helping customers while office staff gone.  

 Downloaded video files from February City Council and Navy housing workshop. Edited files and 
burned to DVD for archiving. 

 Trouble calls at 620 Main Street and 473 Howard. Both lines cleared with power snake. 

 CPO and City Manager conference call with Lisa Bernard regarding sludge disposal from lagoon 

 CPO reviewed and signed daily operation sheets for WWTF  

 CPO performed the daily operation of WWTP during operator Coppini’s scheduled day off. 

 Completed and mailed monthly Self Monitoring Report to the Regional Board 

 Operator Coppini performed general maintenance around the facility 

 Operator Coppini filed online SSO report.  

 Operator Coppini performed the normal in-house weekly and monthly testing and scheduled lab 
work to be done. 

 

POLICE DEPARTMENT: 

 Officer Franks continues to work with Fortuna PD and Rio Dell PD regarding an Alcohol Beverage and 

Control grant.  The grant provides for training, education and enforcement of ABC violations. 

February 2011 Flows Average Minimum Maximum 

Influent MGD .626 .232 1.779 

Effluent MGD .710 .285 1.860 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 61 

 
 

 The joint ABC enforcement team conducted a shoulder tap operation in Fortuna, Ferndale and Rio 

Dell.  Ferndale was the only City with no violations.  

 Chief Smith attended Kiwanis meetings/functions. 

 Chief Smith attended the monthly LECAH meeting. 

 Officer Diaz attended the monthly LETMA meeting. 

 Officer Hynes attended the monthly Gang Task Force meeting. 

 Chief Smith has been dialoguing with an anonymous citizen who wishes to donate a new car to the 

police department for patrol purposes. 

 Chief Smith attended the California Police Chief’s Conference.  

 Participated in the Tsunami warning and preparations. 

Police Statistics – February 2010 

SERIOUS CRIMES Number Cleared 

Homicide 0   

Rape 0   

Robbery 0   

Larceny 1   

Assault 0   

Burglary 0   

Vehicle Theft 0  

  

TOTAL 0 

SECONDARY CRIMES 3 

Calls for Service 51 

Reports Written 7 

  

Traffic Citations 20 

Other Citations 5 

Parking Citations 0 

Warnings 43 

ARRESTS 2 

AGENCY ASSISTS 23 

TRAFFIC COLLISIONS 0 

 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 62 

 
 

Section 13b: Commissions, Committees and Others 

 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 63 

 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 2/24/11 8:30am meeting 

 
Chair Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:36am. Committee Members Lino Mogni, and 
Michael Sweeney along with staff City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum and Administrative Assistant 
Brianna Smith were present. Dane Cowan was absent.  Modifications to the agenda: Definition 
of Signs moved to between A and B. 
 
The minutes from the previous meeting were accepted by MOTION: (Sweeney/Mogni).  All in 
favor. There was no public comment. 
 
Historical Record of Architectural Changes: Tabled until next regular meeting 
 
Definitions of “signs”: After some discussion on signs, staff was instructed to bring back as a 

recurring item on next regular agenda. 

Public Education: discussion included putting together a brochure, inviting Don Anderson or 

Kirk Gothier from the museum to a meeting to combine resources, and talking to Enterprise 

about a General Plan update column. 

Code Enforcement:  MOTION: (Sweeney/Mogni ) Direct staff to ask No Brand Burger Stand for a 

photograph of the outside of building and present it to the Design Review Committee and write 

a letter to Shaw house regarding Vacancy sign.  All in Favor.  

List of Design Review’s recently passed: Tabled until next special meeting 

Procedure for finals on Design Review projects: Tabled until next special meeting 

The next regular meeting will be March 24, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 
10:00 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted: Brianna Smith, Administrative Assistant 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Special Design Review Minutes for the 3/10/11 8:30 am meeting 

 
Vice Chair Dane Cowan opened the meeting at 8:35 am. Committee Members Lino Mogni, and 
Michael Sweeney along with staff City Clerk Nancy Kaytis-Slocum were present. Michael Bailey 
and Dan Brown were absent.   
 
Public Education: Commissioner Sweeney reported that he’d spoken to Kirk Gothier, Chair of 

the Museum Board about a public education program. Gothier suggested that it would be easy 

to involve the museum membership via their quarterly newsletter. They also talked about 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 64 

 
 

putting the draft goals for the Historic and Cultural Resources Element of the General Plan on 

the discussion board for the museum. 

460 Main Street – signage: MOTION: (Mogni/Sweeney) Awning signs are accepted. The 

“Mexican Restaurant” sign in the window will have to use the .25 sq. ft. available. Also, the 

public information signs for WI FI are not to exceed three square feet.  All in favor. 

619 Main Street – signage: This application is not complete. Ask applicant for clarification and 

place on next available design review committee meeting agenda. 

1400 Main Street – signage: The No Brand Burger Stand has done a good job of cleaning up the 

signage. The committee suggested sending a letter to the applicants thanking them for their 

cooperation. 

394 Main Street – carpet leading to front doors: MOTION: (Mogni/Sweeney) Approve the 

carpet color. All in favor. 

List of Design Review’s recently passed and Procedure for finals on Design Review projects: 

Tabled until next regular meeting 

The next regular meeting will be March 24, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 
10:00 am. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Nancy Kaytis-Slocum 
City Clerk 
 

  City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, California USA 
Design Review Minutes for the 3/24/11 8:30am meeting 

 
Chair Dan Brown opened the meeting at 8:30am. Committee Members Lino Mogni, Michael 
Bailey, and Dane Cowan along with staff Administrative Assistant Brianna Smith were present. 
Michael Sweeney was absent.  Modifications to the agenda: 5B. 619 Main Street-Signage was 
moved up before 5A. 
 
The minutes from the last two previous meetings were accepted by MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey).  
All in favor. There was no public comment. 
 
619 Main Street: Signage. MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey) Approve sign at 619 Main St. All in favor. 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 65 

 
 

361 Main Street:  Door. MOTION: (Bailey/Mogni) Approve door at 361 Main Street. Bailey, 

Cowan and Mogni in favor. Dan Brown abstained.   

703 Main Street: Vacancy Sign. MOTION: (Bailey/Cowan) Suggest a painted Vacancy sign with 

indirect lighting put in open space above The Shaw House sign. All in favor. 

Historical Record of Architectural Changes:  MOTION: (Cowan/Bailey) Request documentation 

of changes to exterior of building be submitted with building permit application. Changes 

documented by photograph showing entire elevation where changes are requested. All in 

favor. 

Public Education: Tabled until next regular meeting. 

Code Enforcement:  Bring back on next agenda. 

Definition of “signs”: MOTION: (Bailey/Cowan) Tabled until approval from Planning 

Commission. All in favor. 

List of Design Review’s recently passed: Tabled until next regular meeting 

Procedure for finals on Design Review projects: Tabled until next regular meeting 

The next regular meeting will be April 28, 2011 at 8:30am. The meeting was adjourned at 9:30. 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
Brianna Smith 
Administrative Assistant  
  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 66 

 
 

Russ Park Committee 
City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, 

California, USA 
 

RUSS PARK COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 
 

DATE:  Wednesday, September 23, 2009 

TIME:  7:00PM 
LOCATION: Ferndale City Council Chambers 
  834 Main Street 
  Ferndale, CA. 95536 (707) 786-4224 
 
Members Present: Sharon Katri, Emily Silver, Susan Aste and Jim Stretch, Chair 
 
Note: The location of the meeting was changed to Sharon Katriôs house on Bluff St., 

Ferndale, since the meeting room at City Hall was locked. 
Agenda topics: 
 

1. Introductions as appropriateðNew committee member Susan Aste was introduced 
and welcomed.  

 
2. Approval of 7-22-09 meeting minutesðThe minutes were approved as submitted. 
 
3. Discussion on committee vacancyðThere was a brief discussion about possible 

candidates to fill the 5
th
 committee spot.  Jim will talk to an unnamed person who he 

frequently sees in the park; a person who has recently volunteered for park projects. 
 
4. Possible report on wood sales revenue allocation to Russ Park FundðFirewood is being 

delivered to a list of folks.  When all of the wood is sold (should be soon), staff will compile all of 
the expenditures related to the multi-year project which will be reimbursement from sales 
revenue. After that, 2/3 of the remaining balance will be deposited into City coffers. The 
remaining 1/3 will be deposited in the Russ Park account for park maintenance and 
improvement project funding. 

 
5. Public opportunity to discuss the elimination of Eucalyptus trail entrance/kiosk and the 

renaming of many park trailsðNo public input was received at the meeting or by any 
committee member since the July meeting. 

 
The committee reviewed the tentative decisions it had made on renaming various trails as 
noted in the minutes of 7-22-09. There was only one change, and that was to name the trail to 
what has been called ñBunker Hill Viewpointò the ñHigh Point Spurò.  The trail did not have a 
name and is thought to be the highest trail point in the park. 
 
With regard to the closing of the Eucalyptus Trailhead and elimination of the informational kiosk 
as discussed on 7-22-09, it was noted by both Susan and Sharon that the kiosk may not 
necessary, but an entrance at that location to the Bluff Street Trail is used by hikers and 
runners looking for a trail with a gentle slope.  
 
It was decided to recommend that the entrance to Bluff Street be maintained, and that the kiosk 
that had fallen on hard times last year not be replaced do to the high cost of materials. A small 
ñyou are hereò metal sign similar to those at other trail intersections in the park was thought to 
be adequate. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 67 

 
 

 
A committee report and recommendation will be prepared for the City Council consideration. 

 
6. Reimbursement procedures (and approval of claim) for Russ Park expenses by 

committee membersðThe attached reimbursement policy and procedure for Russ Park 
committee members personal expense related to the park was approved as submitted, with the 
addition of a ñbuy localò provision. Though the City seems to lack a written policy to cover such 
matters, the intent of the procedure was to apply to the committee only, not any other city 
function or circumstance. 

 
The committee reviewed and approved Jimôs claim for reimbursement for personal expenses 
related to the eradication of wasps in public areas of the park, the transplanting and rearing of 
native tree seedlings in the Eucalyptus area, and the treatment of the Blackwood Acacia trees 
along Bluff Street as approved by the Council. The $112.38 claim with original receipts will now 
be submitted to the City Manager for processing. 

 
7. Discussion on treating Duckweed in Zipporahôs Pond, and burning English Holly 

cuttings in pond area before winterðThe committee quickly came to the conclusion that it 
needed more information on the ecology of ponds and the unintended consequences of one 
method of control of Duckweed, a chemical application. A manual raking of the weed from the 
pond would require watercraft on the surface, which seemed like a remote option given the 
shallowness of the pond and the distance up the narrow steep trail over which something that 
floats would have to be carried. 

 
Another control option suggested in the literature as to planting fish or ducks to feed on the 
invasive plant also seemed to have limited potential for on a seasonal pond, for a number of 
obvious reasons. 
 
Committee member Emily Silver agreed to research the topic further and contact university and 
county staff for assistance in evaluating the situation and becoming better informed on 
plausible environmentally friendly control options. She will report back in October. 
 

8. Report on Humboldt Weed Management SeminarðOn 9-12-09, Jim attended an invasive 
weed field seminar at Hiller Park in Mckinleyville.  Presenters/participants included the US 
Forest Service, Cal. Fish & Game, Bureau of Land Management, Cal. Conservation Corp, Univ. 
of Calif. Cooperative Extension and Humboldt Co. Ag. Commissioners Dept. Attendees were 
introduced to eradication tools used in the removal of Scotch Broom and English Holly. The 
tools are available for loan from the Arcata Field Office of the Bureau of Land Management, 
1695 Heindon Road (off of Janes Road. The seminar was valuable in indentifying many 
invasive plants in our community that escape our yards and establish themselves in public 
parks and pastures.  A number of hand-outs from various agencies were shared at the meeting. 

 
9. Opportunity for report from City Manager/City Council on Russ Park topicsðNone 
  
10. Opportunity for community to comment on Russ Park topics not on agendaðMembers of 

the committee put up $75.00 of their personal funds for awards to artists who entered their work 
at the recent Humboldt County Fair art exhibit. The committee received thank you cards from 
$40.00 winner Pat Durbin and $25.00 winner Mary Henry.  It was a good thing! 

 
11. Set next meetingðThe next meeting was set for October 28, 2009 in the City Hall Lounge, 

7:00PM.  
 
12. AdjournmentðThe meeting was adjourned at 8:30PM. 

 
 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 68 

 
 

  



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 69 

 
 

Russ Park Committee 

City of Ferndale, Humboldt County, 

California, USA 
 

Public Meeting Minutes 
 
 

DATE:  February 23, 2011 
TIME:  7:00PM 
LOCATION: Ferndale City Council Chambers 
  834 Main Street 
  Ferndale, CA. 95536 (707) 786-4224 
 
Members Present: Susan Asti, Sharon Katri, Emily Silver and Jim Stretch, Chair. 
 
Agenda Topics: 
 

13. Introductions as appropriateðThere were no members of the public present 
and no introductions. 

 
14. Approval of 9-23-09 meeting minutesðThe minutes of the meeting of last 

meeting (9-23-09) were approved as submitted. 
 
15. Report on City Council actions n Committee recommendations re: 1) 

Renaming Russ Park Trails and 2) Establishing Reimbursement Policy and 
Procedure for Reimbursement of Personal Expenditures Related to Russ 
ParkðAfter discussion and several questions, the City Council approved the 
Committeeôs recommendation on the renaming of several trails in Russ Park 
and naming others that were unnamed; the overall purpose was for trail names 
to be helpful for the new or occasional hiker to understand where the trail went 
or what they might see along the way. 

 
City Manager Jay Parrish approved and signed-off on the recommended 
reimbursement policy and procedure for personal expenses of Committee 
members related to Russ Park. He felt that City Council approval of the item was 
not necessary. 

 
16. Refresher on approved park work planðThe things to do list, dated 7-31-09, 

which was approved by the City Council, was revisited to bring committee 
members current with certain improvements, such as signage, picnic tables and 
kiosk repair.  An item for the grading and graveling of the Bluff Street parking lot 
was added to the listðsomething that probably has never been done. Jim had 
mentioned the parking lot to the Public Works Director. 

 
a). Emily will contact the Ferndale Survey Company to learn about the recent 
survey monuments placed on the southwest area of the park on the Pacific View 
Trail, which appears to be the property corner for Russ Park, the Silva Ranch 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 70 

 
 

and Neils Lorenzen. It has also been the long-term goal to determine the actual 
location of the trail system on the ground by the use of GPS (item #3 on the list). 
Such determination would then make possible the up-dating of the maps for park 
kiosks and the metal trail maps at trail intersections. It was noted that the City 
files on Russ Park do not contain this information. She will report back at the next 
meeting. 
 
b). Emily also volunteered to contact the Ferndale Museum to see if it has the 
original ñplatesò and/or sketches drawn by Larry Eifert of native plant, trees and 
birds depicted on some of the older park materials. The use of such art will be 
very useful in the preparation of updated materials. 
 
c). The Committee would like to review item #7 on the list at the next meeting; 
concerning (14) new park signs leading to the park and the four park entrances. 
Jim will prepare the information. 
 

5. Report on bike rack(s) at Bluff Street parking lot--Susan will look into bike 
rack options for the Bluff Street parking lot and report back at the next meeting.  

 
6. Discussion on treating Duckweed in Zipporahôs Pond (continued from 9-23-09)--

Emily volunteered to learn what she can about pond ecology from contacts at the 
College of the Redwoods and California State University-Humboldt. Is Duckweed 
normal for seasonal bodies of water in the area, and what can we learn about control 
methods, if desirable. A report on the topic will be made at the next meeting. 

 
7. Update on park expenditures for maintenance and Russ Park account balanceð

Jim reported on a number of trail maintenance projects undertaken this winter and 
passed out pictures of many locations, some with before and after shots which will 
given to the City Clerk for the Cityôs Russ Park file. 

 
The City provided a coy of the January 31, 2011 Russ Park Fund Balance Sheet which 
totaled $8,484.59. It did not include approximately $400 for materials purchased at 
Valley Lumber for trail maintenance after the statement was prepared, so, the balance 
in the park fund is approximately $8,000 at this time. The account balance is up 
substantially from the last statement due to a deposit of approximately $4,425 for the 
fundôs share of Eucalyptus wood sales over the last 2 years. The Cityôs General Fund 
received a similar amount. This balance will allow the Committee to secure 2 picnic 
tables for the park and produce new park maps and visitor information park guides, as 
well as a number of projects on the Things To Do Listð2009-2010. 
 

8.  Opportunity for report from City Manager/City Council on Russ Park topicsð
None 

  
9. Opportunity for community to comment on Russ Park topics not on agendað

None 
 

10. Set next meetingðThe next meeting was set for March 23, 2011 in the City Hall, 
7:00PM. 

 
11. AdjournmentðThe meeting was adjourned at 8:30PM. 



April 7, 2011 CITY COUNCIL MEETING P a g e  | 71 

 
 

Section 13c: Council Reports and Comments 
 

 

Section 16: ADJOURNMENT 


